
AGENDA
City of Hobbs Planning Board – Regular Meeting

February 21, 2017 at 10:00 AM

W. M. “Tres” Hicks, Chairman Guy Kesner, Vice Chairman
Bill Ramirez Bobby Shaw
Brett Drennan Dwayne Penick
Larry Sanderson

Tentative  Agenda for the Planning Board Regular Session Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 
February 21, 2017 at 10:00 AM at the City of Hobbs Annex Building, First Floor 
Commission Chambers located at 200 E. Broadway, Hobbs, NM  88240. 

AGENDA

1) Call To Order.
2) Review and Consider Approval of Agenda.
3) Review and Consider Approval of Minutes.

 
January 17, 2017 – Regular Meeting

4) Communications from Citizens.

5) Review and Consider a proposed vacation of a portion of Tomlinson within the 
Chaparral Subdivision located within the Extra Territorial Jurisdiction.

6) Review and Consider a proposed subdivision creating a 1.3 acre Tract to contain an 
RV Park located north of Pilot on Goings Road and accompanying Development 
Agreements for the development of Goings Road adjacent to the Tract.

7) Review and Consider proposed amendment of Municipal Code Title 16 (Subdivision 
Regulations).

8) Adjournment.

The City will make every effort to provide reasonable accommodations for people with 
disabilities who wish to attend a public meeting. Please notify the City at least 24 hours 
before the meeting. Telephone 397-9351.

“Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Hobbs City Commission may be in 
attendance at this meeting.”



PLANNING BOARD MEETING
MINUTES 

January 17, 2017

The Hobbs Planning Board met on January 17, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. at City of Hobbs Annex 
Building, First Floor Commission Chambers, located at 200 E. Broadway, Hobbs, NM 
88240 with Mr. W.M. “Tres” Hicks Chairman presiding.
 
Members Present: Members Absent:

Tres Hicks, Chairman                                             Bill Ramirez
Guy Kesner, Vice Chairman
Bobby Shaw
Bill Ramirez
Larry Sanderson
Dwayne Penick 

Also present were members of the public and City staff as follows:

Kevin Robinson, Development Director Commissioner Buie
Todd Randall, City Engineer Bruce Reid, County Planner
Julie Nymeyer, Staff Secretary Ben Maynes, Building Official
Brandon Waylon Dennis Holmberg
Daniel Johncox Seborn South
Gary Jones

1) Chairman W.M. “Tres” Hicks called the meeting to order at 10:03 am.  
 
2) Review and Consider Approval of Agenda.

The first item of business was to review and approve the Agenda for the January 17, 2017 
meeting.  Mr. Hicks asked if there were any changes or additions to the Agenda?  Mr. 
Robinson said there are no changes or additions to the agenda.  Mr. Shaw made a motion, 
seconded by Mr. Sanderson to approve the agenda as presented.  The vote on the motion was 
6-0 and the motion carried.

3) Review and Consider Approval of Minutes.

December 20, 2016 – Regular Meeting

Mr. Hicks asked if everyone has had a chance to read the Regular Minutes from December 
20, 2016.  Mr. Hicks said there was one minor correction which is the spelling of Ms. Elyce 
Gobat’s name.  Mr. Sanderson made a motion seconded by Mr. Drennan to approve the 
minutes as corrected.  The vote on the motion was 6-0 and the motion carried. 



4) Communications from Citizens.

There was no communications from Citizens.

5) Review and Consider Variance to Municipal Code Chapter 16.16.050 B-1 (Lots) as 
requested by Robert Smith, property owner. Minimum width for a newly created lot 
containing a detached structure is 35’; the property owner is proposing to replat five 
25’ lots creating 3 lots. One of the lots proposed to be created is not compliant with 
MC 16.16.050 B-1 having a width of 31’. The proposed replat is located on Burke 
between Clinton and Park.

Mr. Robinson said 35 feet is the minimum requirement for a single family unit and the 
owner is requesting a variance for 31 feet instead of the 35 feet required.  Mr. Shaw asked if 
there was plenty of room for a single wide to be moved into that space if that unit is ever 
moved?  Mr. Kesner said if you move the mobile home off of that lot and then the owner of 
the land has a 31 foot lot that you cannot do anything with. He said if you grant this variance 
then it will have to be granted perpetually. Mr. Robinson said correct, once that lot is there 
then it is there forever.  He said right now it will now be a big deal because there is just one 
owner. 

Mr. Hicks said it seems like there is room in the development to make the lot 35 foot 
meeting the standard by allowing a variance on the setback until the mobile homes are 
replaced. He said then the issue is eventually fixed.  Mr. Kesner said the Board has 
recommended making the notations on the plat that as the units are replaced it must be 
replaced in a compliant position.  Mr. Hicks said you would not be able to sale the lots now 
anyway because there are so many encroachments.  Mr. Kesner made a motion, seconded 
by Mr. Penick to grant the variance of the 31’ lot. The vote on the motion is 5-1 with Mr. 
Hicks opposing. Mr. Shaw said staff should recommend to the owner Mr. Hicks suggestion 
before this is recorded.  Mr. Randall said staff will follow up with the surveyor and the 
developer of the property.  

6) Review and Consider Tanglewood, Unit 2 at Ranchview Estates Preliminary Plan as 
submitted by property owner Western States Development Group, LLC.

Mr. Robinson said this is a Preliminary Plan review for Tanglewood Unit 2. He said the 
municipality and this Board has been instrumental at making changes amending Title 16.  
He said this is one of those items that have been changed somewhat in Title 16. He said 
Tanglewood Unit 2 did receive preliminary plan approval on July 7th 2014. He said 
subsequently they are going to start development of Unit 2 now. He said it has been longer 
than 6 months so the preliminary plan review under today’s Title 16 is void. He said 
traditionally they have taken preliminary plat approvals to the Commission. He said that is 
not required per our ordinance but it is an extra assurance to the developer that the 
Planning Board and the Commission has granted preliminary plan approval.  He said staff 
has made some slight red line changes.  

Mr. Shaw said he is going to abstain from this item because he is involved in this project.  
Mr. Hicks asked if there were any comments or questions from the Board? Mr. Kesner made 



a motion, seconded by Mr. Penick to approve the preliminary plan with staff comments.  
The vote on the motion was 5-0 and with Mr. Shaw abstaining. 

7) Review and Consider various variance requests for proposed development to be 
located adjacent to the Lovington Highway north of the Holiday Inn Express as 
submitted by Hawkins Companies, property owner. Variance Request #1 is a setback 
variance; Lovington Highway is classified as a Major Arterial with a required setback 
of 40' from the property line; the proposed structures are requested to be located 20' 
from the property line requiring a 20' variance. Variance #2 is a parking variance; 
total buildout will produce +/- 188,863 sq. ft. of retail space requiring 944 parking 
spaces per MC 15.20, the developer is proposing 850 parking spaces requiring a 
variance of 94 spaces. Variance #3 is a sign variance; MC 15.32.030 C-3 allows one 
multi-business shopping center sign comprised of 288 sq. ft. sign face total, the 
developer is proposing two multi-business shopping center sign comprised of 288 sq. 
ft. sign face total.

Mr. Robinson said this is variance request from Hawkins Development Group. He said this 
item came before this board at the last meeting for a variance on a single parcel that they 
purchased within their proposed master development area. He said it extends from the 
Holiday Inn Express north to the projected Magnolia Street.  He said at the last meeting the 
variance was for the Verizon site which is the furthest south lot was denied.  He said the 
development of the entire site would require three variances. He said it would be for a 
setback variance, a parking variance and a sign variance.  He said staff has been in 
extensive discussions about developer agreements. 

 Mr. Robinson said Mr. Brandon Waylon with the Hawkin’s group is here to speak. He said 
he had every intention of being at the last meeting but he went to the Commission Meeting 
instead of the Planning Board Meeting. 

Mr. Waylon said they are looking at three variances needed for this property. He said one is 
the setback standard. He said they are requesting a 20 foot setback on the frontage. He said 
the second request is a modification to the off street parking standard. He said instead of 
the five parks per thousand they are requesting four. He said they are above that but they 
would like a little flexibility. He said the third variance will be for the signage. 

Mr. Waylon said the first variance he would like to discuss if the signage. He said the code 
allows one sign for the shopping center to be 288 sq. feet of which 144 sq. feet have to go to 
the name of the shopping center.  He said they believe the area is really going to change 
with the C.O.R.E. going in.  He the site plan right now is 14 acres with 148,000 square feet of 
retail development with 17 different buildings with a possible 30 different tenants.  He said 
what they are looking for is two signs for the center. He said they would like an aggregate of 
288 feet spread on 2 signs.  

Mr. Waylon said the second request is the slight modification to the off-street parking 
standard.  He said the site plan before you today has 740 off street parking spaces, he said 
by code it would require 744 so they are 4 spaces short.  He said in phase II there will be 
approximately a 40 thousand square foot building and they can add about 100 spaces to that. 



He said full build out for phase I and phase II they will have approximately 188,000 square 
feet of development with 850 parking spaces provided which is about 90 short of the 
standard.  

Mr. Hicks asked if their square footage is total building foot prints? Mr. Waylon said yes. 
Mr. Hicks said it is his assumption that each one of the buildings will have some type of 
storage. He said storage does not count against parking requirements. Mr. Waylon said his 
only hesitation is that he doesn’t know who will be in some of these tenant spaces and he 
doesn’t know how big their storage area will be versus their retail space. He said there will 
be a varied retail use so there will be a fluctuation in the parking field. 

Mr. Hicks said 94 short is less than 15% of the total required. He said based on the 
assumption of storage he doesn’t see that as an issue.  He said he would encourage them to 
do a mix of compact and larger parking spaces. 

Mr. Waylon said the last request he would like to make today is the setback variance. He 
handed out a packet that details three site plans.  He said if you push the setback to the 40 
foot they can easily move four of the buildings within the same area they are located and 
meet the setback but two of the buildings would get pushed back. He said it is the pushing 
back of the larger buildings that would require the drive isle to be moved back. He said then 
the parking field in front of their larger in line boxes gets reduced.  He said they want to be 
the best two proposals in front of the Real Estate Committee and the parking field is one of 
the biggest things they look at. 

Mr. Waylon said if the Board approves the 20 foot setback it will make a better situation that 
what is currently out there today. He said there is 35 feet of edge of pavement to the 
property line. So there is 75 feet for right-of-way improvement before you get to the property 
line and their buildings would be 20 feet behind that.  

Mr. Kesner said he would like to see limited access off Lovington Highway.  Mr. Waylon 
said if someone was trying to enter the shopping center they could pull out of the lane of 
travel and then decelerate for a safer situation. He said it is his understanding that 
diversifying the access points and giving them as many as possible keeps people from 
loading up and having difficulty getting in and out of the property. He said they are trying 
to strike a balance of getting people off and on the property. 

Mr. Robinson said currently as the initial Master Plan site is proposed to be developed there 
are two accesses with an additional access of the Verizon Store to the south. Mr. Waylon 
said that he believes it is written in Verizon lease that they have access to Lovington 
Highway.  

Mr. Shaw asked if there would be traffic control on Magnolia? Mr. Robinson said yes that is 
in the works. Mr. Kesner said his concern is not egress into the shopping center it is coming 
out of the shopping center. Mr. Hicks said limiting left turns is the biggest traffic incident 
problem. Mr. Randall said without this large project combining all these properties to create 
one point that will warrant a traffic signal then what they would have is individual driveways 
going into each property.  



Mr. Hicks asked about the sign variance request.  He asked if they were asking for two 
signs for 288 square feet plus the center name above it? Mr. Waylon said correct.  Mr. 
Robinson said this Board could make things a little easier and give a variance for two 
shopping center signs.  

Mr. Hicks asked if they granted the 20 foot setback would that apply to the Verizon Store 
and all the other stores? Mr. Waylon said yes.  Mr. Hicks asked if the 20 foot would be 
landscaping? Mr. Waylon said absolutely.  

Mr. Hicks asked for a motion on the sign variance first. Mr. Penick made a motion, 
seconded by Mr. Drennan to approve the variance for two shopping center signs contingent 
on the Developers Agreement.  The vote on the motion was 4-0 with Mr. Hicks and Mr. 
Shaw abstaining. 

Mr. Kesner made a motion, seconded by Mr. Sanderson for the off street parking variance 
from 1 per 1000 foot to 4 per 1000 foot subject to the development agreement. The vote on 
the motion is 4-0 with Mr. Shaw and Mr. Hicks abstaining.

Mr. Drennan made a motion, seconded by Mr. Penick to approve with the 20 foot variance 
for the entire project with the ingresses and egresses shown on the drawing.  

Mr. Hicks asked Mr. Randall about the one lane in and two lanes out on the drawing. He 
asked if it would discourage left turn traffic by only providing one lane out? Mr. Randall said 
yes it would potentially discourage left turn traffic but it will also back everyone else up.  He 
said the Highway department on this corridor doesn’t want a driveway any more than 600 
foot spacing. He said their rules for driveways and accesses points on an arterial are a lot 
less restrictive than this.       

Mr. Kesner said if they are going to keep all three access points? He and said he is in favor 
of restricting right in and right out and can they do that during the construction phase 
similar to the one Walmart has.  Mr. Hicks asked if he would like the motion to be 
amended? Mr. Kesner and Mr. Penick said yes.  Mr. Hicks said left in is ok but left out is 
what you want restricted? Mr. Kesner said yes.  Mr. Waylon said if they have to accept a 
reduced access then the middle access would be the access to do it.

Mr. Drennan amended the motion, seconded by Mr. Penick to have access as shown except 
the middle access is restricted to a right in, right out, left in only.  The vote on the motion 
was 4-0 with Mr. Hicks and Mr. Shaw abstaining.

8) Review and Consider proposed subdivision located southwest of the intersection 
of Jones Road and Bensing within the extra territorial jurisdiction of the 
Municipality, as submitted by property owners.

Mr. Robinson said this is a claim of exemption located on Jones Road.  He said there is a 
need for a dedication. He said the Lea County Subdivision Regulations they do not have an 
opportunity to accept a dedication on a claim of exemption.  He said dedications have 
always been problematic. He said the Municipality does not want to own property in the 
ETZ and the County does not have to accept a dedication.  



Mr. Gary Jones said when you dedicate land to the public it triggers a sequence of events 
that legally have to be met. He said you have to sever the tract of land from its parent tract 
and the land owner has to be willing to dedicate the land to the public.  He said the second 
thing is the county has to accept the dedication.  He said the county does not require that 
the land be dedicated. 

Mr. Jones said if you follow the law and the rules of dedication you have sever the tract and 
null and void any claim of exemptions.  He said Mr. Robinson has the Municipal Code on 
there but the municipality does not have the authority to extend your Municipal Code 
outside your cooperate boundaries.  

Mr. Shaw said the City Attorney Mr. Stone discussed easements giving surface and 
subsurface rights. He asked Mr. Jones about doing an easement with surface and 
subsurface rights? Mr. Jones said a title company guy told him when you said subsurface 
that means minerals. He said that would be a question for an attorney. He said Lea County 
does not have a utility department so why would they accept utility easements? He said 
nowhere in the subdivision regulations does it say it has to have an easement. He asked his 
clients if they would be willing to give an easement and they said no.  

Mr. Robinson said city staff did offer options of how to be compliant with our existing rules 
and regulations. He said one of the options was the subdivision of the property.  He said the 
municipality did not request or force a subdivision. He said it was the least expensive option 
because the address assignment manual states that each individual property could be 
address with a driveway. 

Mr. Hicks said the municipal Title 16 states that access must be here on dedicated. He said 
it is the only written rules that the city has related to planning and platting and they do have 
planning and platting authority.  Mr. Jones said he sees a lot of problems with the City 
asking people to dedicate roadway in the County.  

Mr. Hicks said they had a meeting last week about relooking at the address manual for 
some of these county roads. He asked Mr. Jones if the electric line has an easement? Mr. 
Jones said he did not do a title search.  Mr. Hicks said then there is an electric line with a 
prescriptive easement at least, he said there is a road with a prescriptive easement at least 
and fences that encroach. He said we cannot make our standards fit.  He asked staff if there 
would be any long term impacts to approving this without the dedication, knowing that 
someday there will likely be a need for a road improvement and the land owners will have to 
come to some type of agreement. Mr. Robinson said there has already been municipal 
infrastructure installed on Bensing. He said this is an area with not the greatest water 
supply and may need a water source from the municipality. He said these are the 
opportunities and if you don’t get them at this point then they are very difficult to get them 
later.  

Mr. Shaw said one of the things brought up in last week’s meeting was the issue of two 
dwellings on the same land. He said it triggers some issues that could come up.  Mr. 
Robinson said asking these land owners to dedicate an easement which is an encumbrance 
on their propertyt is the fairest and least painful thing to work around.  



Mr. Hicks asked the Board to make a decision on this item.  Mr. Shaw made a motion, 
seconded by Mr. Drennan to approve this subdivision and issue a variance to the Tile 16 
rules.  The vote on the motion was 5-1 with Mr. Hicks opposing and the motion carried.   

9) Review and Consider proposed subdivision located northeast of the terminus of 
West Bender, as submitted by property owners.

Mr. Jones said this is where Bender dead ends. Mr. Robinson said this is a summary 
subdivision plat because it is three tracts. Mr. Hicks asked for staff’s opinion. Mr. Robinson 
said it will require approval by the Lea County Planning and Lea County Commission.  He 
said there is a dedication that is a section north of this which is Zia Crossing. He said 100 
foot right-of-way was dedicated on east part of the property line. Mr. Kesner said he thought 
that the Mr. Needham with the County would recommend this to be dedicated.  Mr. Kesner 
made a motion, seconded by Mr. Penick to approve the subdivision with the requirement 
for dedication of existing roadway area as required by the MTP on the south side of the 
tracts along Bender.  The vote on the motion was 6-0 and the motion carried.  

10) Adjournment.

With nothing further to discuss the meeting adjourned at 12:13 pm.

______________________
Tres Hicks, Chairman



5) Review and Consider a proposed vacation of a portion of Tomlinson within the 
Chaparral Subdivision located within the Extra Territorial Jurisdiction.





1000 ft
N

➤➤

N
© 2016 Google

© 2016 Google

© 2016 Google

Area proposed to be
vacated.



6) Review and Consider a proposed subdivision creating a 1.3 acre Tract to contain an 
RV Park located north of Pilot on Goings Road and accompanying Development 
Agreements for the development of Goings Road adjacent to the Tract.







120'-3"

Fair share received
from Pilot

Fair share received
from Greenly

Fair share received
from Dagger Draw

Fair required with
development of
Tract B

Fair share DA
required prior to
subdivision

Fair share DA
required prior to
subdivision

163'-10"



INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
Partial Extension of Goings Road

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this        day of                         2017,  between the City of 
Hobbs, New Mexico, a New Mexico Municipal Corporation, (hereafter called the "City"); and Kress Jones and 
Patricia Jones ,3729 W Sanger, Hobbs NM, 88240 (hereafter called “Developer”).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Developer has decided to locate a new commercial enterprise on property located 
Northeast of the intersection of 62/180 and Goings Road, which is within the City limits of the City of Hobbs, 
and the development requires municipal infrastructure to be extended from the existing terminus to developers 
northern property line, said infrastructure to include sewer, water and roadway improvements as an industrial 
street section; and

WHEREAS, Developer desires to pay to the City the fair share infrastructure costs for that portion of the 
required public infrastructure adjacent to the developments east property line. Therefore, it has been 
determined by City and agreed by Developer that in lieu of Developer installing the required infrastructure at 
the time of development, Developer shall pay a one-time fair share assessment for required infrastructure 
improvements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. The Developer shall pay to the City, at time of summary subdivision plat approval, the fair share pro rata 
amount of Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00), in lieu of installing municipal infrastructure required along the 
Developers west property line, said infrastructure to include sewer, water and roadway improvements as an 
industrial street section.

2. The Developer shall utilize the water and sewer to be located within Goings Road for the developments 
water and sewer service.

3. The City shall construct or cause to be constructed, municipal infrastructure improvements for that portion 
of Goings Road abutting the Developers west property line within 1 year from the execution of this agreement.

5. Responsibilities of the parties hereto are as follows:

A. The Developer shall:

1) Pay for all costs for development pursuant to City policies, including the payment of the 
fair share pro rata infrastructure improvements as per this agreement.

2) Comply with all City policies for building, landscaping, fire code, etc. for the remainder of 
the construction.

B. The City shall:

1) Design or cause to be designed construction plans for the partial development of Goings 
Road.

2) Construct or cause to be constructed, municipal infrastructure improvements for that 
portion of Goings Road adjacent to the Developers west property line within 1 year from 
the execution of this agreement.

6. All notices given pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement shall be made in writing and posted 



Goings Road Extension East of RV Park, Page 2.

by regular mail, postage prepaid, to the City, ATTN: Planning Department, 200 E. Broadway, Hobbs, NM  
88240; to Developer – Kress Jones and Patricia Jones ,3729 W Sanger, Hobbs NM, 88240, or to such other 
address as requested by either party. Notice shall be deemed to be received on the fifth day following posting.

7. This Agreement may be executed in one or more identical counterparts, and all counterparts so 
executed shall constitute one agreement which shall be binding on all of the parties. 

8. This Agreement shall be subject to the laws of the State of New Mexico. Jurisdiction and venue relating 
to any litigation or dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be in the District Court of Lea County, New 
Mexico, only. If any part of this contract shall be deemed in violation of the laws or Constitution of New Mexico, 
only such part thereof shall be thereby invalidated, and all other parts hereof shall remain valid and 
enforceable.

9. Representations of City.

A. City is a duly organized and validly existing municipal corporation under the  laws of the State of 
New Mexico with full municipal power to enter into this Agreement and to carry out the terms, conditions and 
provisions hereof.

B. City will continue review and processing of the development plans, and forthcoming building 
permit application in a forthright manner and with due diligence.

10. Representations of Developer.

To the best knowledge of Developer, there is no litigation, proceeding or governmental investigation 
either pending or threatened in any court, arbitration board or administrative agency against or relating to 
Developer to prevent or impede the consummation of this Agreement by Developer.

11. BREACH

A. The following events constitute a breach of this Agreement by Developer:

Developer’s failure to perform or comply with any of the terms, conditions or provisions of this 
Agreement.

B. The following events constitute a breach of this Agreement by City:

City’s failure to perform or comply with any of the terms, conditions or provisions of this Agreement.

12. REMEDIES UPON BREACH.

A. Any party may sue to collect any and all damages that may accrue by virtue of the breach of this 
Agreement.

B. If any party is found by a court to have breached this Agreement, the breaching party agrees to 
pay all reasonable costs, attorney’s fees and expenses that shall be made or incurred by another party in 
enforcing any covenant or provision of this Agreement.

13.  GOVERNING LAWS. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Mexico. 
Jurisdiction and venue relating to any litigation or dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be in the District 
Court of Lea County, New Mexico, only. If any part of this contract shall be deemed in violation of the laws or 
Constitution of New Mexico, only such part thereof shall be thereby invalidated, and all other parts hereof shall 



Goings Road Extension East of RV Park, Page 3.

remain valid and enforceable.

14. TERMINATION. This Agreement shall be terminated upon the completion of all installation and 
construction defined herein.

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among and between City 
and Developer and there are no other agreements or understandings, oral or otherwise, between the parties on 
the issues defined herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first written 
above.

CITY OF HOBBS DEVELOPER – Kress Jones and Patricia Jones

    
                                                                                                                          .
Sam D. Cobb - Mayor

BY:                                                      
          

Its :                                                      

ATTEST:  
 

                                                      .
Jan Fletcher, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

                                                        .
Michael Stone, City Attorney



INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
Partial Extension of Goings Road

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this        day of                         2017,  between the City of 
Hobbs, New Mexico, a New Mexico Municipal Corporation, (hereafter called the "City"); and Margaretha Dyck 
and Abram Dyck, P.O. Box 2181, Hobbs, NM 88240 (hereafter called “Developer”).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Developer has decided to locate a new commercial enterprise on property located 
Northeast of the intersection of 62/180 and Goings Road, which is within the City limits of the City of Hobbs, 
and the development requires municipal infrastructure to be extended from the existing terminus to developers 
northern property line, said infrastructure to include sewer, water and roadway improvements as an industrial 
street section; and

WHEREAS, Developer desires to pay to the City the fair share infrastructure costs for that portion of the 
required public infrastructure adjacent to the developments west property line. Therefore, it has been 
determined by City and agreed by Developer that in lieu of Developer installing the required infrastructure at 
the time of development, Developer shall pay a one-time fair share assessment for required infrastructure 
improvements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. The Developer shall pay to the City, at time of summary subdivision plat approval, the fair share pro rata 
amount of Twenty Two Thousand One Hundred Dollars ($22,100.00), in lieu of installing municipal infrastructure 
required along the Developers west property line, said infrastructure to include sewer, water and roadway 
improvements as an industrial street section.

2. The Developer shall utilize the water and sewer to be located within Goings Road for the developments 
water and sewer service.

3. The City shall construct or cause to be constructed, municipal infrastructure improvements for that portion 
of Goings Road abutting the Developers west property line within 1 year from the execution of this agreement.

5. Responsibilities of the parties hereto are as follows:

A. The Developer shall:

1) Pay for all costs for development pursuant to City policies, including the payment of the 
fair share pro rata infrastructure improvements as per this agreement.

2) Comply with all City policies for building, landscaping, fire code, etc. for the remainder of 
the construction.

B. The City shall:

1) Design or cause to be designed construction plans for the partial development of Goings 
Road.

2) Construct or cause to be constructed, municipal infrastructure improvements for that 
portion of Goings Road adjacent to the Developers west property line within 1 year from 
the execution of this agreement.

6. All notices given pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement shall be made in writing and posted 



Goings Road Extension RV Park, Page 2.

by regular mail, postage prepaid, to the City, ATTN: Planning Department, 200 E. Broadway, Hobbs, NM  
88240; to Developer – Margaretha Dyck and Abram Dyck, P.O. Box 2181, Hobbs, NM 88240, or to such other 
address as requested by either party. Notice shall be deemed to be received on the fifth day following posting.

7. This Agreement may be executed in one or more identical counterparts, and all counterparts so 
executed shall constitute one agreement which shall be binding on all of the parties. 

8. This Agreement shall be subject to the laws of the State of New Mexico. Jurisdiction and venue relating 
to any litigation or dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be in the District Court of Lea County, New 
Mexico, only. If any part of this contract shall be deemed in violation of the laws or Constitution of New Mexico, 
only such part thereof shall be thereby invalidated, and all other parts hereof shall remain valid and 
enforceable.

9. Representations of City.

A. City is a duly organized and validly existing municipal corporation under the  laws of the State of 
New Mexico with full municipal power to enter into this Agreement and to carry out the terms, conditions and 
provisions hereof.

B. City will continue review and processing of the development plans, and forthcoming building 
permit application in a forthright manner and with due diligence.

10. Representations of Developer.

To the best knowledge of Developer, there is no litigation, proceeding or governmental investigation 
either pending or threatened in any court, arbitration board or administrative agency against or relating to 
Developer to prevent or impede the consummation of this Agreement by Developer.

11. BREACH

A. The following events constitute a breach of this Agreement by Developer:

Developer’s failure to perform or comply with any of the terms, conditions or provisions of this 
Agreement.

B. The following events constitute a breach of this Agreement by City:

City’s failure to perform or comply with any of the terms, conditions or provisions of this Agreement.

12. REMEDIES UPON BREACH.

A. Any party may sue to collect any and all damages that may accrue by virtue of the breach of this 
Agreement.

B. If any party is found by a court to have breached this Agreement, the breaching party agrees to 
pay all reasonable costs, attorney’s fees and expenses that shall be made or incurred by another party in 
enforcing any covenant or provision of this Agreement.

13.  GOVERNING LAWS. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Mexico. 
Jurisdiction and venue relating to any litigation or dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be in the District 
Court of Lea County, New Mexico, only. If any part of this contract shall be deemed in violation of the laws or 
Constitution of New Mexico, only such part thereof shall be thereby invalidated, and all other parts hereof shall 



Goings Road Extension RV Park, Page 3.

remain valid and enforceable.

14. TERMINATION. This Agreement shall be terminated upon the completion of all installation and 
construction defined herein.

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among and between City 
and Developer and there are no other agreements or understandings, oral or otherwise, between the parties on 
the issues defined herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first written 
above.

CITY OF HOBBS DEVELOPER – Margaretha Dyck and Abram Dyck
    
                                                                                                                          .
Sam D. Cobb - Mayor

BY:                                                      
          

Its:                                                      

ATTEST:  
 

                                                      .
Jan Fletcher, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

                                                        .
Michael Stone, City Attorney



7) Review and Consider proposed amendment of Municipal Code Title 16 (Subdivision 
Regulations).



The following two sections of the Code are outstanding issues related to the ETJ 
needing to be resolved prior to a final recommendation for adoption to the 
City of Hobbs Commission. The first change is located in MC 16.04.010 – B and 
currently states:

B.    "Subdivide" or "subdivision" for the purpose of approval by a Municipal Planning 
Authority means:

1. For the area of land within the corporate boundaries of the municipality, the division of 
land into two (2) or more parts by platting or by metes and bounds description into 
tracts for the purposes set forth in subsection C of this section; and

2. For the area of land within the municipal extraterritorial subdivision and platting 
jurisdiction, the division  of land into  two (2) or more parts by platting  or by metes 
and bounds description into tracts of less than five (5) acres in any one (1) 
calendar year for the purposes set forth in subsection C of this section.

staff’s opinion is the above would be fine but for Section 7.5 of the Lea County 
Subdivision Regulations providing for a “Claim of Exemption” allowing for the 
subdivision of property greater than 5 acres within the ETJ without approval from 
any Governing Authority. Initially the following changes were proposed:

B.    "Subdivide" or "subdivision" for the purpose of approval by a Municipal Planning 
Authority means:

1. For the area of land within the corporate boundaries of the municipality, or within the 
extraterritorial planning and platting jurisdiction, the division of land into two (2) or 
more parts by platting or by metes and bounds description into tracts for the purposes 
set forth in subsection C of this section.

of course the above as written would require the Municipality to approve every 
subdivision within the ETJ. With that being said staff is now proposing:

B.    "Subdivide" or "subdivision" for the purpose of approval by a Municipal Planning 
Authority means:

1. For the area of land within the corporate boundaries of the municipality, or within the 
extraterritorial planning and platting jurisdiction, the division of land into two (2) or 
more parts by platting or by metes and bounds description into tracts for the purposes 
set forth in subsection C of this section. Those subdivisions within the extraterritorial 
jurisdiction creating tracts of 5 acres or larger, regardless of the number of tracts created 
shall be reviewed under the Alternate Summary Procedure of this Code.

again we would be approving every subdivision within the ETJ but streamlining 
the process for those subdivisions that would be receiving County P&Z and 
County Commission approval. 



An issue has come up numerous times, primarily over the interpretation of a 
single word, in the following portion of the code:

16.12.010 Eligible subdivisions.

B. The land shall abut on a street or streets of adequate width in a partially platted area and 
is so situated that no additional streets, alleys, easements for utilities or other public property 
are required; or if required to conform to other public streets, alleys or other public ways 
and such additional property is shown on the plat as "Herein Dedicated."

neither the County Subdivision Regulations nor the Municipalities Subdivision 
Code allow a Subdivision to occur creating or adjacent to a private roadway. 
The Code above specifies an “Eligible Subdivision” that can be approved 
administratively under the “Alternate Summary Procedure” and as you can see 
does not allow for approval of a subdivision creating or adjacent to a private 
roadway. Acceptance by the County of a fee simple dedication, as required by 
the County Regulations, within the ETJ becomes a problem when the property 
owner requests a “Claim of Exemption”. Although the Municipality, as the sole 
governing authority having jurisdiction after a “Claim of Exemption” has been 
granted by the County, may accept dedication of easements on behalf of the 
public in this case, we cannot accept a fee simple dedication on the County’s 
behalf.  The process of “dedicating a property right” (an easement) has been 
misconstrued by some to mean the same thing as “dedicating property” (fee 
simple) so the Code could be changed to read:

16.12.010 Eligible subdivisions.
B.    The land shall abut on a public street or streets of adequate width and is so situated that no 

additional streets, alleys, easements for utilities or other public property are required; or if 
required to conform to other public streets, alleys or other public ways and such additional 
property is shown on the plat as "Herein Dedicated", or if within the extraterritorial jurisdiction 
those public ways required being conveyed as a surface and sub-surface easement.

and the above changes would still require a “fee simple” dedication within the 
Municipal boundaries and would codify the dedicating, granting, reserving or 
somehow conveying a “property right” to the public within the ETJ. 


























